
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday June 11, 2020 scheduled to start at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Prayer 

 
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2020.04.09 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
b) 2020.05.14 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 

 
5. Delegations: 

a) Brenda MacMillan – Municipal Gifting Model and Lagoon/RV Dumping Station 
b) Myrna Young – Communities in Bloom 

 
6. Gallery Comments 

 
7. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) Approval of Mill Rate Budget 
b) Pass Bylaw #241-2020 Tax Rate 
c) Pass Bylaw #256-2020 Municipal Borrowing Bylaw 
d) Appoint an assistant returning officer (Carrie Kinahan) for election day (should Connie 

not be able to fulfill the duties) 
e) Candidates running for Council on July 21, 2020 
f) Special Ballot concerns 
g) Cardston County and Water Treatment Plant operations in 2021 

 
8. Councillor Reports: 

 
9. CAO Report: 

 
10. Financial Reports: 

a) Accounts Payable Cheques for May 2020 (20190716-20190751) 
b) Budget vs Actual Review May 2020 

 
11. Correspondence: 

a) CMRSWA 2019 Financial Statements 
b) 2020 Detailed Assessment Audit Notification Letter 
c) Bill 13 EMA Amendments FAQ Final 
d) CMRSWA Minutes 05-20 



Page 2 of 2 

e) FAQ sheet May 29 Issue 
f) Memo to Municipalities-Committee Meetings 05.26.20 
g) Commission meeting invite 
h) Village of Glenwood 2020 GTF award 

 
12. Closed Meeting: 

a) Employee Matters – (Water Treatment Plant Operators & CAO) As per Section 24(b)(i) 
of the FOIP Act 

 
13. Adjournment: 





VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
April 9, 2020 Minutes 


 
The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood 
Community Hall on April 9, 2020 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance:  Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors 
Gerald Carter and Barton Lybbert. Councillor Myron Lybbert was absent. 
 
Officials:  Assistant CAO Carrie Kinahan was in attendance. 


 
 


 


 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes April 9, 2020 Initials: Page 1 of 2 
 


 


Called to Order 
 
 
Prayer 
 
Agenda Adoption 
2020.04.040 
 
 
Minutes Adoption 
2020.04.041 
 
 
Delegations: 
Mercer Wilde & Hakon 
Skoien – 2019 Audit 


 
Assessment Review 
Group - report 
 
Items for Discussion: 
2019 Municipal Audit 
2020.04.042 
 
 
Councillor M Lybbert 
2020.04.043 
 
 
 
Deferral of Property 
Tax Payments 
2020.04.044 
 
 
Waiving Business 
Water Shut Off/on Fees 
2020.04.045 
 
 
Waive Interest Charges 
on Overdue Utility Bills  
2020.04.046 
 
 
 
Campers 
 
Council & CAO Reports 
Councillor Carter 
 
 


Mayor Albert Elias called the April 9, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
to order at 7:03 PM 
 
Councillor Carter 
 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to adopt the agenda with one addition: 6.c 
Campers - concerns around them coming into the Village. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Barton Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 
2020.03.12 Regular Council Meeting.  


Carried 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
 
Councillor B Lybbert MOVED to accept the Municipal Audit as 
presented. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to approve Councillor Myron Lybbert be absent 
from all upcoming council meetings indefinitely, per MGA Section 
174(1). 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table the discussion until the next 
regularly scheduled council meeting. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to waive Business water shut off/on fees 
until December 31, 2020 to aid during COVID19.     


 Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table the discussion until the next 
regularly scheduled council meeting. 


Carried 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 


• Attended Chinook Foundation meeting – discussed raising 
the annual requisition to meet expenses 


 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes April 9, 2020 Initials: Page 2 of 2 
 


Mayor Elias 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor B. Lybbert 
 
 
 
Assistant CAO Carrie 
Kinahan 
 
 
2020.04.047 
 
 
 
Financial Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.04.048 
 
 
 
Correspondence 
 
 
Adjournment 
2020.04.049 


• No meetings this month 
 
 


• Library Board meeting on whether to close or not. 
• Been cleaning up the Library while maintaining Social 


distancing 
• Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Authority (CMRSWA) 


meetings postponed until further notice. 
 
 


• Reported on Recreation Board; all upcoming events 
cancelled, due to COVID19 


• Cemetery clean up day; Working on how to do clean up and 
keep a Social Distance  


 
• Reported on COVID19 issues. 


  
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the councillor and CAO reports 
as information. 


Carried 
 
• Council reviewed the Accounts Payable Cheques for March 


2020 (20190642 – 20190667 & 20190688) 
• Council reviewed the 2020 Budget VS Actual Operating & 


Capital Report to date 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the financial reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 
No correspondence available for this meeting, due to CAO absence. 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:03 PM. 


Carried 
 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 


  
 








VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
May 14, 2020 Minutes 


 
The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood 
Community Hall on May 14, 2020 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance:  Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors Gerald Carter and 
Barton Lybbert. Mayor Albert Elias was absent. 
 
Officials:  CAO Marilee Campbell was in attendance. 


 
 


 


 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes May 14, 2020 Initials: Page 1 of 3 
 


 


Called to Order 
 
 
Prayer 
 
Agenda Adoption 
2020.05.50 
 
 
 
Minutes Adoption 
2020.05.51 
 
 
 
 
Delegations: 
RCMP Quarterly Report 
 
 
Gallery Comments: 


 
 


Items for Discussion: 
Non-Residential 
Education Property Tax 
Deferral 
2020.05.052 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mill Rate Budget 
Review 
 
Bylaw #245-2020 
Rates, Fees & Charges 
2020.05.053 
 
 
 
2020.05.054 
 
 
 
 
2020.05.055 
 
 
 


Deputy Mayor David Rolfson called the May 14, 2020 Regular 
Council Meeting to order at 7:08 PM 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to adopt the agenda with one addition: 6. 
Gallery Comments. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table the adoption of the minutes of 
the 2020.03.12 Regular Council Meeting until the June regular 
council meeting. 


Carried 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to approve the 2020 Glenwood Municipal 
Taxes payment due date be moved to September 30, 2020 in 
compliance with the Alberta Government Non-Residential 
Education Property Tax Deferral legislation in response to the 
COVID19 pandemic. 


Carried 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to approve First Reading of Bylaw 
#245-2020 Rates, Fees & Charges, as amended that item 4.2(c) 
Other Interment fee be increased to $2500. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to approve Second Reading of Bylaw 
#245-2020 Rates, Fees & Charges, as amended that item 4.2(c) 
Other Interment fee be increased to $2500. 


Carried 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to consider Third & Final Reading 
of Bylaw #245-2020 Rates, Fees & Charges, as amended that item 
4.2(c) Other Interment fee be increased to $2500. 


Carried 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes May 14, 2020 Initials: Page 2 of 3 
 


2020.05.056 
 
 
 
 
CRA Payroll Remittance 
EFT payments 
2020.05.057 
 
 
 
 
2020 By-Election 
2020.05.058 
 
 
 
Returning Officer 
2020.05.059 
 
 
 
Advance Vote for By-
Election 
 
Special Ballot for By-
Election 
2020.05.060 
 
 
 
 
Include Vote on the 
Question 
2020.05.061 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council & CAO Reports 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter 
 
 
 
CAO Marilee Campbell 
 
 
 


Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to approve Third & Final Reading 
of Bylaw #245-2020 Rates, Fees & Charges, as amended that item 
4.2(c) Other Interment fee be increased to $2500. 


Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED approve the payment of CRA Monthly 
Payroll Remittance amounts via EFT online banking through ATB 
CAN-ACT. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to set the By-Election Day as Tuesday, 
July 21, 2020. 


 Carried 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to appoint Connie Gibb as the 
Returning Officer for the 2020 By-Election. 


Carried 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson MOVED to approve the Returning Officer to 
decide which methods of special ballot will be enacted for the 2020 
By-Election. 


Carried 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to include in the 2020 By-Election the 
vote on the question: Do you support the Village of Glenwood 
contributing $75,000, with matching contribution of $75,000 by 
Tough Country Communications, towards the installation of fiber 
internet to each home and business in Glenwood; and the remaining 
funding coming from a Federal CRTC Grant for a total project cost of 
approximately $650,000? 


Defeated 
 
 
 


• Attended a Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Authority 
(CMRSWA) meeting via Zoom – will continue working 
towards becoming a Commission. 


•  No Library Board meeting this month 
 
 


• Cemetery clean up day scheduled for Saturday May 23 from 9 
AM till noon – there will be no BBQ or children’s activities 
this year 


 
• Attended Chinook Foundation meeting via Zoom 
• No Mayors & Reeves meeting this month 


 
 


• Property Assessment Notice packages will be mailed out 
within the next two weeks 


• Tax Notices will be mailed at the end of June 
  







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes May 14, 2020 Initials: Page 3 of 3 
 


2020.05.062 
 
 
 
Financial Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.05.063 
 
 
 
Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.05.064 
 
 
 
Closed Meeting 
2020.05.065 
 
 
 
2020.05.066 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
2020.05.067 


Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the councillor and CAO reports 
as information. 


Carried 
 
• Council reviewed the Accounts Payable Cheques for April 


2020 (2019068-20190715) 
• Council reviewed the 2020 Budget VS Actual Operating & 


Capital Report to date and asked that the $ remaining column 
be changed to a percentage 


• Council reviewed the Bank Reconciliation Reports for Jan, 
Feb & March 2020 


 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the financial reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 


a) AHS South ZEOC LO Update March 
b) AHS South ZEOC LO Update April 
c) AHS South ZEOC LO Update May 
d) Board Report - April 2020 
e) CCES MINUTES Mar 5, 2020 
f) Condolence Cardston County letter 
g) Condolence Minister's letter 
h) Condolence ORRSC letter 
i) Condolence card Town of Cardston 
j) FactSheet_QA_April 17 
k) FAQ_May 8 
l) Letter and MOs from Minister Madu 
m) Letter to Members re Access to Health Care 
n) ORRSC Executive Minutes - February 13, 2020 
o) Police Advisory Board Appointments 
p) Relaunch 


 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the correspondence as 
information. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to close the meeting to the public at 8:50 
PM to discuss Employee Matters per Section 24(b)(i) of the FOIP Act. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to open the meeting to the public at 9:15 
PM. 


Carried 
 
The Council Meeting resumed at 9:20 PM allowing for the public to 
rejoin the meeting. 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:25 PM. 


Carried 
 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 


  
 








 
 
 
 
Village of Glenwood Council  Delegation   June 11, 2020 
 
 
 
RE: Lagoon of the Village 
 
It has been a great number of years now that people within the Village have been aware that our 
Lagoon is in a ‘special’ consideration status, which has us on the hook of 
 
 “ if you do this, in this time frame, then you’ll be allowed to continue “ 
 
This is never a healthy place to be, and with that I would like to bring attention to our Council, that in 
the spring summer months our population here more than doubles and those numbers are only 
growing. 
 
For years we have stated that we can “ not afford “ to gift our dumping station facilities to whomever 
wants to freely contribute to our Lagoon. 
 
I personally do not appreciate the ‘victim’ stance we continue to take on topic, and would appreciate a 
solid, defined and comprehensive plan that shows how we are going to address this topic in our 
Community. 
 
I’d plans of doing personal research, before this delegation, and ran out of time with higher personal 
commitments.  This is YOUR work Council and Administration. 
 
What are you doing about it ? 
 
 
Brenda MacMillan 
Village Resident 
 
 








Village of Glenwood Council   Delegation    June 11, 2020 
 
TOPIC:  Municipal Gifting Model 
 
Money.  It’s a tool.  It’s not evil, and with that; it occasionally is used as a weapon by some vs. the simple 
tool that it is.  All things being equal, a useful life plan (or business plan) is to “ spend some, save some, 
and give some away “ ~ Money, I mean specifically here. 
 
When young we mess up this protocol and make a bunch of mistakes.  Hopefully, by adulthood we’ve a 
heathy pattern in place, and are active in all three areas, as a habit, all of the time.  As we age out, it is 
desirable to be giving away more than we spend on self, and continue saving for (maybe) a legacy left in 
our namesake, once we pass on ourselves.  The ‘giving’ can show up in time, resources and/or money 
outright.  Eg. Retired seniors giving time, and or money, to causes they care about. 
 
No need here to identify the very challenging stresses now being experienced by Municipalities, by both 
levels of government above our own.  Grant funding is negligible at this point and maybe now locally 
we’ve begun to understand that Provincial grant funding is NOT free.  Its tax dollars collected otherwise, 
and redistributed, as current politicians see fit, back to municipalities and elsewhere. 
 
This past year is the very first time, since 1961, that the Village has actually identified any deliberate 
“savings” as reserves, and $ 1,000.00 is our number.  Really ?  Yeah, really.  Our spending, in some 
situations, has been (and still) been unquestionably wasteful. 
 
The notion of “gifting” or giving away in such times is doubly hard AND necessary; as with the savings. 
A model of health and ease, that some municipalities and corporations use, is one of a bulk number; eg. 
We dedicate $ 20,000.00 (just a number) to gifting this year in the budget, and invite people to delegate 
to Council their needs (who vote to a yes or no), and once the funds are gone, they are gone.  Also, in 
our case, with 5 councilors, each councilor could be assigned a particular amount of money  
(say $ 200.00) which they alone could make a personal decision on what person or situation they wish to 
gift their allocation to, for their own private reasons.  When the cheque is cut (to any of those receiving 
a gift) it is all clear and transparent to where our “gifting” budget has gone. 
 
A true gift, no matter where it has gone, or who it has been received by, is that; a gift.  The giver holds 
no hook on what has been given away.  The giver cannot micromanage what the receiver has been 
bestowed upon the receiver.   There’s no skin in the game or ownership by the giver. 
 
You bet, there are lots of variables in “flow through” grant funds in our municipal accounts.  These are 
protective mechanisms in place that in hopes of curbing abuse and making sure that grant funds are 
spent, in the manner & conditions, in which they are gifted.  However, and again, they are gifts. 
Conditions met, funds spent, no back door entry into what’s been accomplished by others. 
 
This is the same with ‘gifts’ flowing from our own bank account to support any given situation in the 
Village.  I have watched, from afar mostly, our volunteer organization and some societies experiencing a 
toxic use of money, by the Village (and its cash flow) to the detriment of us all.  Please stop this.  Openly 
communicate instead.  The volunteers in the Village are waning, and there is good reason that is 
happening.  Own your mistakes, apologize and move on.  We need our volunteers. 
 
Brenda MacMillan, Village Resident 








VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


June 11, 2020 updates


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for Changes


SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDS


TAX REVENUES
1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (6,000)            171                (5,829)            To match requisition


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (53,000)          800                (52,200)          To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (13,900)          (100)               (14,000)          To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (233,500)        6,200             (227,300)        To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (23,300)          500                (22,800)          To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019


1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing (5,585)            5,585             -                    To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019


GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,000)            (4,000)            


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (9,000)            (9,000)            (18,000)          To reflect 2019 actuals


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,500)            (3,500)            


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (300)               (300)               


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (180)               (180)               


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (100)               (100)               


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (240)               (240)               


1-12-00-00-00-561 Rental Buildings (2,000)            (2,000)            


OPERATING GRANTS REVENUES


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (2,500)            (2,500)            


1-00-00-00-00-751 Grant ACP (1,000)            (1,000)            


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,000)          2,393             (31,607)          To reflect announced funding amount


PROTECTIVE SERVICES REVENUES


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Proceeds - Fines, Lease (200)               (200)               


TRANSPORTATION SERVICES REVENUES


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (200)               (200)               


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (100)               (100)               


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES REVENUES


Irrigation:


1-40-00-00-00-041 Sales - Irrigation (10,200)          (7,500)            (17,700)          To reflect new rates effective July 1


Water:


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install (1,000)            (1,000)            


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (100)               (100)               


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (110,200)        (110,200)        


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,000)            (3,000)            


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (500)               (500)               


Waste water:


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install (1,000)            (1,000)            


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (24,000)          (24,000)          


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,000)            (3,000)            


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000)            (4,000)            


Waste management:


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,000)          (12,000)          


CEMETERY REVENUES


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (600)               (600)               


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery Donations (500)               (500)               


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution (1,375)            (1,375)            


RECREATION & CULTURE REVENUES


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,000)            (1,000)            


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100)               (100)               


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (47,600)          14,600           (33,000)          Parlour will open July 1


Adjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


Printed on 6/11/2020 Page 1 of 6







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


June 11, 2020 updates


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days Funds-Fireworks Donations (3,000)            (3,000)            


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Revenue (2,400)            (2,400)            


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REVENUES


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (200)               (200)               


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers from Reserves - Operating (3,000)            (3,000)            


TOTAL SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDS         (621,380)            13,649 (607,731)        


USES OF OPERATING FUNDS


COUNCIL EXPENSES


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums 11,000           11,000           


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel 6,000             6,000             


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc


Training, memberships, and general 2,000             2,000             


Remembrance Day program 250                250                


Christmas 500                500                


Council breakfast at Glenwood Days 750                750                


3,500             -                    3,500             


ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin 89,100           -                    89,100           


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO


General 1,750             1,750             


LGAA Conference 1,000             1,000             


Emergency Management 250                250                


Muniware Out of Scope & Training 1,000             1,000             


4,000             -                    4,000             


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin 6,200             -                    6,200             


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin 13,200           -                    13,200           


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin 2,500             500                3,000             


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census -                    500                500                by-election


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training Admin


General 1,000             1,000             


Emergency Management 500                500                


Muniware Out of Scope & Training 500                500                


ARB Training 3,000             (3,000)            -                    Done in-house through ORRSC


5,000             (3,000)            2,000             


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Admin 1,500             1,500             


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Admin 1,000             1,000             


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin


Photocopier rental 2,700             2,700             


Photocopying 1,200             1,200             


General 1,400             1,400             


Alberta Southwest membership 200                200                


AUMA 1,100             1,100             


6,600             -                    6,600             


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin


Muniware support 4,100             4,100             


Outsourced CFO 13,000           13,000           


Annual financial audit 10,200           10,200           


Legal 3,000             3,000             


General 3,000             3,000             


33,300           -                    33,300           


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin 2,500             2,500             


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin 600                600                


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin 13,800           13,800           


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles 200                200                


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Maintenance Admin 800                800                


Printed on 6/11/2020 Page 2 of 6







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


June 11, 2020 updates


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin 8,200             8,200             


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin 2,750             2,750             


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin 1,300             1,300             


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power 2,750             2,750             


2-12-00-00-00-541 Admin Utilities Gas 1,500             1,500             


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin 2,750             2,750             


2-12-00-00-00-999 Admin - Amortization 224,400         224,400         


PROTECTIVE SERVICES EXPENSES


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages 1,000             -                    1,000             


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire 50                  50                  


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc 2,000             2,000             


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies 50                  50                  


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power 1,950             1,950             


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas 1,900             1,900             


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition CCES 11,300           11,300           


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services 1,200             1,200             


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services 500                500                


TRANSPORTATION SERVICES EXPENSES


Shop:


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool 2,700             (100)               2,600             


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool 200                -                    200                


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool 200                -                    200                


2-31-00-00-00-110 V Maint Wages 13,700           (500)               13,200           


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main 900                (100)               800                


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits V-Maint 1,000             -                    1,000             


2-31-00-00-00-250 V Maint Contracted Services 2,000             2,000             


2-31-00-00-00-510 V Maint Tools, Hardware, Op 2,000             2,000             


2-31-00-00-00-524 V Maint Equipment Supplies 2,000             2,000             


2-31-00-00-00-526 V Maint Equipment Supply Tractor 800                800                


2-31-00-00-00-527 V Maint Fuel 3,100             3,100             


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear 500                500                


2-31-00-00-00-620 Operating Revenue to Capital Reserve -                    -                    


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop PW 900                900                


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone PW 900                900                


Roads & streets:


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Road & Streets 17,200           (700)               16,500           


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Roads 1,100             -                    1,100             


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Roads 1,200             -                    1,200             


2-32-00-00-00-250 Roads & Streets Contracted Services 2,000             2,000             


2-32-00-00-00-260 Roads & Streets Goods & Services 1,000             1,000             


2-32-00-00-00-530 Roads & Streets Maint Materials 1,000             1,000             


2-32-00-00-00-540 Roads & Streets Utilities 12,000           12,000           


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES EXPENSES


Irrigation:


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation 6,900             (300)               6,600             


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services 500                500                


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint 750                4,000             4,750             Replace irrigation meter (reallocated from capital)


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power 3,600             3,600             


Water:


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water 29,500           (800)               28,700           


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water 2,600             (100)               2,500             


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water 2,300             -                    2,300             


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel 3,000             3,000             


Printed on 6/11/2020 Page 3 of 6







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


June 11, 2020 updates


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant 1,100             1,100             


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services 11,000           11,000           


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint


General 3,500             (3,000)            500                Adj. to reflect historical


Annual turbine maintenance 2,500             2,500             


Genset maintenance 1,600             1,600             


7,600             (3,000)            4,600             


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc 1,500             1,500             


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service 6,500             6,500             


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power 10,700           10,700           


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas 3,800             3,800             


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount 3,500             3,500             


Waste water:


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer 2,700             (100)               2,600             


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer 200                -                    200                


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer 200                -                    200                


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services 5,250             5,250             


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services 250                250                


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount 250                250                


Waste management:


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services 250                250                


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services 250                250                


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition 7,100             1,087             8,187             To reflect the actual requisition


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station 3,300             750                4,050             To reflect the actual requisition


CEMETERY EXPENSES


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery 2,100             (100)               2,000             


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services 3,250             3,250             


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power 1,100             1,100             


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves 500                500                


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services 500                500                


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS 1,730             1,730             


2-76-00-00-00-252 Development Expenses


ORRSC annual requisition 3,200             3,200             


Chinook Intermunicipal SDAB membership 500                500                


SDAB training 1,500             (1,500)            -                    No longer needed - ORRSC doing this in-house


ORRSC land-use bylaw update 2,020             2,020             To reflect actual invoice from ORRSC


5,200             520                5,720             


RECREATION & CULTURE EXPENSES


Parks & Recreation:


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc 500                500                


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks 3,000             3,000             


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec 2,000             -                    2,000             


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power 1,000             1,000             


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas 800                800                


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (vlg use only)


General 3,650             (1,150)            2,500             To reflect anticipated amount needed


Fortis tree replacement 2,500             2,500             


Beautification 1,000             1,000             To replace discontinued communities in bloom


6,150             (150)               6,000             


Library:


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services 1,000             1,000             


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services 500                500                


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support 15,300           (300)               15,000           To match to prior year's funding


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library 2,500             2,500             


Printed on 6/11/2020 Page 4 of 6







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


June 11, 2020 updates


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


Community Hall:


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Centre 2,700             (100)               2,600             


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Center Contracted Service 500                500                


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Center Goods & Service 1,000             1,000             


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Centre Utilities Power 1,500             1,500             


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Centre Utilities Gas 1,125             1,125             


Pioneer Parlour:


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour 18,500           (4,100)            14,400           Parlour will open July 1


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP 500                (100)               400                Parlour will open July 1


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services 1,500             (500)               1,000             Parlour will open July 1


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses 1,000             (300)               700                Parlour will open July 1


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services 19,900           (6,200)            13,700           Parlour will open July 1


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power 1,700             1,700             Parlour will open July 1


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas 1,100             1,100             Parlour will open July 1


Post Office:


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power 500                500                


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas 375                375                


COMMUNITY SUPPORT REQUISITIONS


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing 5,585             5,585             


2-62-00-00-00-206 Community Services - Communities in Bloom 2,000             (2,000)            -                    Communities in Bloom has been discontinued


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Society Requisition 1,500             1,500             


2-62-00-00-00-209 Glenwood Seniors Requisition 500                500                


2-62-00-00-00-210 Community Services - FCSS 2,446             2,446             


2-62-00-00-00-750 Farm Safety Centre Donation 300                300                


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Board Requistion 1,500             (1,000)            500                Covid-19


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation 6,000             (171)               5,829             To reflect actual requisition amount


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist 4,400             700                5,100             To reflect prior year actual plus inflation


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation 73,100           (1,954)            71,146           To reflect actual requisition amount


2-98-00-00-00-116 Designated Industrial Property Requisition 47                  (47)                 -                    Requisition canceled


2-12-00-00-00-763 OPERATING TRANSFER TO RESERVES


General 972                4,016             4,988             To reflect changes to budget


Emergency management reserves 3,000             3,000             


3,972             4,016             7,988             


TOTAL USES OF OPERATING FUNDS 845,780         (13,649)          832,131         


Less: Amortization (224,400)        -                    (224,400)        


NET (SOURCES) USES OF OPERATING FUNDS -                    -                    -                    


SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDS


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (211,850)        (10,000)          (221,850)        To reflect changes to capital budget funding


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF (130,000)        11,000           (119,000)        To reflect changes to capital budget funding


TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDS (341,850)        1,000             (340,850)        


USES OF CAPITAL FUNDS


2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfers to Capital


IT upgrades 10,750           10,750           


10,750           -                    10,750           


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Services - Transfer to Capital


Repairs to gas line at Fire Hall 2,000             2,000             


Inverter / generator 2,000             2,000             


4,000             -                    4,000             


2-32-00-00-00-762 Streets - Transfer to Capital


Miscellaneous drainage 46,400           46,400           


Main Avenue road rebuild 110,000         9,000             119,000         To reflect updated quote of $114k plus $5k for parking


Crack sealing 25,000           25,000           


181,400         9,000             190,400         


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital


Printed on 6/11/2020 Page 5 of 6







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


June 11, 2020 updates


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


Irrigation pumphouse meter 5,000             (5,000)            -                    


5,000             (5,000)            -                    


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital


WTP valve upgrade 65,000           65,000           


WTP Pump 4 replacement 30,000           30,000           


WTP WIN 911 alarm software 6,700             6,700             


Additional fire hydrants 15,000           (15,000)          -                    Reallocated to out-of-town water meters


Out-of-town water meters 4,000             15,000           19,000           


Water valves for rural water lines 3,000             3,000             


123,700         -                    123,700         


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital


Manholes 12,000           12,000           


12,000           -                    12,000           


2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Center - Transfer to Capital


Parking at post office 5,000             (5,000)            -                    Reallocated to 2-32-762


5,000             (5,000)            -                    


TOTAL USES OF CAPITAL FUNDS 341,850         (1,000)            340,850         


NET (SOURCES) USES OF CAPITAL FUNDS -                    -                    -                    


NET(SOURCES) USES OF FUNDS -                    -                    -                    


Printed on 6/11/2020 Page 6 of 6








Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 241-2020 Mayor Initials:               CAO Initials:                                           Page 1 of 3 
 


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
BYLAW # 241-2020 


 
 
A BYLAW TO AUTHORIZE THE RATES OF TAXATION TO BE LEVIED AGAINST ASSESSABLE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA FOR THE 2020 
TAXATION YEAR. 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Glenwood has prepared and adopted detailed estimates of municipal 
revenue and expenditures as required, at the council meeting held on June 11, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated municipal expenditures and transfers, excluding amortization, set out 
in the budget for the Village of Glenwood for 2020 total $948,581; and 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated municipal revenues and transfers from all resources other than 
taxation is estimated at $626,452 and the balance of $322,129 is to be raised by general 
municipal taxation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the requisitions are: 
 
 Alberta School Foundation Fund (ASFF)       
  Residential/Farmland      $60,094 
  Non-residential      $11,052 


 TOTAL SCHOOL REQUISITIONS      $71,146 
         
 CHINOOK FOUNDATION      $5,829 
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the Village of Glenwood is required each year to levy on the assessed 
value of all property, tax rates sufficient to meet the estimated expenditures and requisitions; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council is authorized to sub-classify assessed property, and to establish different 
rates of taxation in respect to each sub-class of property, subject to the Municipal Government 
Act, Chapter M-26, Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the assessed value of all property in the Village of Glenwood as shown on the 
assessment roll is: 


       Assessment 


 Residential & Farmland      $22,868,330 


 Non-residential (Commercial & Industrial)      $2,521,890 


 Machinery & Equipment (“M&E”)      $1,180,610 







Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 241-2020 Mayor Initials:               CAO Initials:                                           Page 2 of 3 
 


 
NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of the 
Village of Glenwood, in the Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 


1. That the Chief Administrative Officer is hereby authorized to levy the following rates 
of taxation on the assessed value of all property as shown on the assessment roll of 
the Village of Glenwood: 


 
   Tax Levy  Assessment  Mill Rate 


General Municipal       
 Residential & Farmland  $167,206  $22,868,330  7.31168 
 Non-residential  $41,148  $2,521,890  16.31633 
 M&E  $22,800  $1,180,610  19.31205 
 Linear & DIP  $14,000  $568,530  24.62491 
 Totals  $245,154  $27,139,360   


        
Alberta School Foundation Fund       


 Residential/Farmland  $60,094  $22,868,330  2.62783 
 Non-residential (1)  $11,052  $3,090,420  3.57621 
 Totals  $71,146  $25,958,750   


        
Chinook Foundation  $5,829  $27,139,360  0.21478 


      
TOTAL MILL RATE  Residential & Farmland  10.15429 


   Non-residential  20.10732 
   M&E  19.52683 
 Linear & DIP  28.41590 
    


 *Notes:  1 )  M&E is excluded from ASFF tax. 2) Designated industrial is applied to Linear and Designated Industrial only. 


 
2. That the minimum amount payable per parcel as property tax for general municipal 


purposes shall be $150.00 on all property. 
 


3. That the taxes hereby authorized to be assessed, imposed and collected by these 
several rates are hereby declared to be and become due and payable to the Village 
on the 30th day of September, 2020. 
 


4. That a 1.5% penalty will be imposed on the total unpaid balance of the tax 
accounts and applied the first day of each calendar month. Such penalties will 
become part of the taxes owing. 
 


 Linear & Designated Industrial Property (DIP)      $568,530 


 TOTAL ASSESSMENT      $27,139,360 







Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 241-2020 Mayor Initials:               CAO Initials:                                           Page 3 of 3 
 


5. That an additional 3.0% penalty will be imposed on the total unpaid balance of the 
tax accounts and applied on the first business day of 2021. Such penalties will 
become part of the taxes owing. 


 
6. That the penalty found in sections 4 and 5 of this bylaw will not be assessed to tax 


levy amounts being paid under the Tax Installment Program, unless the conditions 
of the Tax Installment Program are not adhered to, at which point the penalties in 
sections 4 and 5 will be assessed. 


 
7. That this bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and final reading. 


 
Read a FIRST time this 11th day of June, 2020. 
Read a SECOND time this 11th day of June, 2020. 
Read a THIRD time and passed this 11th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   


Albert Elias  Marilee Campbell 
Mayor  Chief Administrative Officer 
 








 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 256-2020 Page 1 of 4 
 


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
 


BYLAW # 256-2020 
 


Municipal Borrowing Bylaw 
 


This bylaw authorizes the council of the Village of Glenwood to incur indebtedness. 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Glenwood in the Province of Alberta, considers it 
necessary to borrow certain sums of money for the purpose of: 


• ATB Financial Revolving Line of Credit, for general village operations, authorized for 
$100,000.00 at the interest rate of 3.7% 


• ATB Financial Business MasterCard, for general village operations, authorized for 
$10,000.00 


 
NOW THEREFORE pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, it is hereby 
enacted by the Council of the Village of Glenwood as a Bylaw that: 
 


1. The Village of Glenwood borrow from Alberta Treasury Branches (ATB Financial) up to 
the principal sum of $110,000 repayable upon demand at a rate of interest per annum 
from time to time established by ATB Financial, and such interest will be calculated daily 
and due and payable monthly on the last day of each and every month. 


 
2. The Chief Elected Officer and the Chief Administrative Officer are authorized for and on 


behalf of the Corporation: 
a. To apply to ATB Financial for the aforesaid loan to the Corporation and to 


arrange with ATB Financial the amount, terms and conditions of the loan and 
security or securities to be given to ATB Financial; 


b. As security for any money borrowed from ATB Financial: 
i. To execute promissory notes and other negotiable instruments or 


evidences of debt for such loans and renewals of all such promissory 
notes and other negotiable instruments or evidences of debts; 


ii. To give or furnish to ATB Financial all such securities and promises as ATB 
Financial may require to secure repayment of such loans and interest 
thereon; and 


iii. To execute all security agreements, hypothecations, debentures, charges, 
pledges, conveyances, assignments and transfers to and in favour of ATB 
Financial of all or any property, real or personal, moveable or immovable, 
now or hereafter owned by the Corporation or in which the Corporation 
may have any interest, and any other documents or contracts necessary 
to give or to furnish to ATB Financial the security or securities required by 
it. 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 256-2020 Page 2 of 4 
 


 
3. The source or sources of money to be used to repay the principal and interest owing 


under the borrowing from ATB Financial are: 
a. The collection of municipal taxes. 


 
4. The amount to be borrowed and the term of the loan will not exceed any restrictions set 


forth in the Municipal Government Act. 
 


5. In the event that the Municipal Government Act permits extension of the term of the 
loan and in the event the Council of the Corporation decides to extend the loan and ATB 
Financial is prepared to extend the loan, any renewal or extension, bill, debenture, 
promissory note, or other obligation executed by the officers designated in paragraph 3 
hereof and delivered to ATB Financial will be valid and conclusive proof as against the 
Corporation of the decision of the Council to extend the loan in accordance with the 
terms of such renewal or extension, bill, debenture, promissory note, or other 
obligation, and ATB Financial will not be bound to inquire into the authority of such 
officers to execute and deliver any such renewal, extension document or security. 
 


6. Bylaw #256-2018 is repealed. 
 


7. This Bylaw comes into force on the final passing thereof. 
 
 


Certificate 
 
WE HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Bylaw was duly passed by the Council of the 
Corporation therein mentioned at a duly and regularly constituted meeting 
thereof held on the 11th day of June, 2020 at which a quorum was 


present, as entered in the minutes of the said Council, and that the Bylaw has come into 
force and is still in full force and effect. 
 
THIS Municipal Borrowing Bylaw, inclusive of its Certificate: (a) may be executed 
electronically; and (b) may be delivered by email, facsimile or other functionally equivalent 
means. 
 
WITNESS our hands and the seal of the Corporation this 11th day of 


June, 2020 . 


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 256-2020 Page 3 of 4 
 


Read a FIRST time this 11th day of June, 2020. 
Read a SECOND time this 11th  day of June, 2020. 
Read a THIRD time and finally passed this 11th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
  


 Albert Elias, Chief Elected Official 
  
  
  


 Marilee Campbell, Chief Administrative 
Officer 


 
 


Completing Form 7115 – Municipal Borrowing Bylaw 
 
Heading 
Signing officers must complete the heading of the form ("Section     of the Municipal 
Government Act" or "Bylaw No.     " to ensure they are aware of all conditions and restrictions 
set forth in the Municipal Government Act.  Refer to clause 5 of form.  Depending on the loan 
purpose, officers should enter the following section of the Municipal Government Act in this 
space. 


• For Operating expenditures, enter section 256 


• For Short-term capital borrowing, enter section 257 


• For Long-term capital borrowing, enter section 258 


• For Interim financing - capital projects, enter section 259 


• For Special projects, enter section 260 


• For Refinancing, enter section 261 


• For Interim financing of joint project, enter section 262 


• For Local improvements, enter section 263 
 
Name of Municipality 


• Enter legal name of municipality. 
 
Loan Purpose 
Enter purpose of the loan in general terms. 
 
Clause 1 


• Loan Amount 
 
Clause 2 – Loan for Operating Expenditures 


• Delete Clause 2 of the bylaw 


• Ensure both officer signing the form initial the deletion 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 256-2020 Page 4 of 4 
 


 
Clause 2 – Loans for Capital Expenditures 


• Enter: The frequency of principal payments.  For example, monthly, quarterly, semi-
annual, or annual. 


• Enter: The payment amount.  If payments are equalized, enter the equalized payment.  
If payments are principal plus interest, enter only the principal payment. 


• The loan term should not exceed 1 year. 
 
Clause 4 – Source of Repayment 
Insert the source of repayment.  Use the following guidelines: 


• Operating Expenditures – For example, enter: taxes, reserves, or grants. 


• Short-Term Capital Borrowing – For example, enter: business tax, property tax, well 
drilling equipment tax, reserves, or grants. 


• Long-Term Capital Borrowing – For example, enter: business revitalization zone tax, 
reserves, or grants. 


• Interim Financing – Capital Projects – Enter: payout from long-term capital loan. 


• Special Works – For example, enter: special tax. 


• Refinancing – For example, enter: property tax, business tax, reserves, or grants. 


• Interim Financing of Joint Project – For example, enter: share of joint venture with 
County. 


• Local Improvements - For example, enter: local improvement tax. 
 
Clause 5 – Compliance to Municipal Government Act:  Interpretation 


• The onus is on the municipality to comply with the Municipal Government Act and its 
regulations. 


• ATB can rely on the bylaw 30 days after the municipality passed the bylaw. 


• If a bylaw appears to be outside restrictions established by the Municipal Government 
Act, contact your lender, who will contact their Credit department for direction. 


 
Certificate and Signing 


• Officers must complete and sign the certificate on the date the meeting is held to pass 
the bylaw.  By: 


o Execution of the form: 
▪ Signed by the Chief Elected Official 
▪ Signed by the Chief Administrative Officer 
▪ Sealed with the municipality's corporate seal 
▪ All signing parties must initial any changes. 













 2:59:25PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Jun-9Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190716 2020-05-11 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT  69.59


2020*04*LIB 2020*APRIL PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS  69.59 


 20190717 2020-05-13 1823625 Alberta Ltd.  OA Marshall lines 2014 PAYMENT  2,730.00


420 ROAD SEALING - (CRACKS)  2,730.00 


 20190718 2020-05-13 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT  4,134.41


20-1033761 UTILITIES  4,134.41 


 20190719 2020-05-13 ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION PAYMENT  44.10


IN158816 LINE LOCATES  44.10 


 20190720 2020-05-13 BECK'S EXCAVATING & TRUCKING LTD PAYMENT  3,959.55


2811 TIE IN & SOIL CEMETERY  3,959.55 


 20190721 2020-05-13 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT  4,061.97


2020*APR 2020*04 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS  4,061.97 


 20190722 2020-05-13 CARDSTON COUNTY PAYMENT  579.40


IVC000000018500 GRAVEL AT CEMETERY  579.40 


 20190723 2020-05-13 CARDSTON HOME HDWE BUILDING CENTRE PAYMENT  851.97


102-87960 CEMETERY POSTS  851.97 


 20190724 2020-05-13 DWAIN SHIPLEY PAYMENT  26.25


2020.02 WTP PORTA JOHN  26.25 


 20190725 2020-05-13 MICROAGE, 1218450 ALBERTA LTD. PAYMENT  1,159.20


17232 COMPUTER BATTERY PACK  103.95 


17339 VGA ADAPTOR, & TRAVEL  299.25 


4228 REMOTE BACK UP  756.00 


 20190726 2020-05-13 PINCHER CREEK CO-OP PAYMENT  62.20


00219081A COVID TAPE SUPPLIES  62.20 


 20190727 2020-05-13 PINCHER CREEK FARM CENTRE INC. PAYMENT  59.83


628-381615 COVID CLEANING SUPPLIES  59.83 


 20190728 2020-05-13 RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA PAYMENT  81.97


53227603 OFFICE SUPPLIES  81.97 


 20190729 2020-05-13 UFA CO-OPERATIVE LTD. PAYMENT  697.85


SOINV0172357 OIL / GREASE  451.22 


SOINV0172360 OIL  246.63 


 20190730 2020-05-13 VAN DAN'S PAYMENT  38.80


39-36-37-38 COMM. HALL, WATER PLANT, BLUE SHOP  38.80 


 20190731 2020-05-21 REAL & RECKLESS APPAREL INC. PAYMENT  105.00


1618 MASKES  105.00 


 20190732 2020-05-28 MACMILLAN, BRENDA REPL-20190510 Replacement Cheque  50.00  50.00


REPL-20190510 Replacement Cheque


 20190733 2020-05-28 MACMILLAN, BRENDA REPL-20190559 Replacement Cheque  143.45  143.45


REPL-20190559 Replacement Cheque


 20190734 2020-05-28 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD PAYMENT  893.13


0172-15 JUNE BENEFITS  893.13 


 20190735 2020-05-28 ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD PAYMENT  998.26


2020 - MAY PHONE ARENA LOCK POSTAGE IRR. PARTS 998.26 


 20190736 2020-05-28 CAMPBELL, MARILEE PAYMENT  237.58


2020-MAY-31 POSTAGE, OFFICE SUP, COVID, KEYS, WTP SAMPLE 237.58 


 20190737 2020-05-28 CHIEF MOUNTAIN GAS CO-OP LTD PAYMENT  283.33


28729 LIBRARY FURNACE REPAIR  283.33 


 20190738 2020-05-28 DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  231.93


258745 PHOTOCOPIES  231.93 


 20190739 2020-05-28 EDWARDS, DARRELL PAYMENT  187.19







 2:59:25PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-Jun-9Cheque Listing For Council


Page 2 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190739 2020-05-28 EDWARDS, DARRELL 2020-05-31 CEMETERY, MPC  187.19  187.19


 20190740 2020-05-28 EDWARDS, JANET PAYMENT  210.00


200001922 WTP TRAINING - JANET & PERRY  210.00 


 20190741 2020-05-28 HACH SALES & SERVICE CANADA LTD. PAYMENT  749.70


222499 WTP CHEMICAL  749.70 


 20190742 2020-05-28 KINAHAN, CARRIE PAYMENT  219.42


2020 - MAY DELIVERY, GAS, CLEANER, SAFETY EQUIP, OFFICE 219.42 


 20190743 2020-05-28 LETHBRIDGE TRUCK TERMINALS PAYMENT  86.79


182290 WTP CHEMICAL DEL.  86.79 


 20190744 2020-05-28 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. PAYMENT  1,134.02


20200281 MAY SUPPORT  304.51 


20200318 SERVER INSTALL  315.00 


20200488 JUNE SUPPORT  304.51 


20200534 UPDATE FORMER ROLL #  210.00 


 20190745 2020-05-28 TWINPRO INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS PAYMENT  531.39


33945 CHEMICAL & BLEACH  531.39 


 20190746 2020-05-28 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT  220.36


5010404873 06/29/2020 - 07/28/2020  220.36 


 20190747 2020-05-28 HUNSPERGER, PERRY


 20190748 2020-05-28 EDWARDS, JANET


 20190749 2020-05-28 KINAHAN, CARRIE


 20190750 2020-05-28 GOETZ , CALVIN


 20190751 2020-05-28 CAMPBELL, ELIZA M


*** End of Report ***


Total  35,702.95








 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 1 of 10


Tax Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,520.07) (5,847.32) (6,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (6,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (49,488.39) (52,143.99) (53,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (53,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (12,961.37) (14,004.13) (13,900.00)  0.00  100.00 (13,900.00)


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (217,615.50) (227,298.55) (233,500.00)  0.00  100.00 (233,500.00)


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (21,706.20) (22,805.99) (23,300.00)  0.00  100.00 (23,300.00)


1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing  0.00  0.00 (5,585.00)  0.00  100.00 (5,585.00)


*        TOTAL Tax Revenue (307,291.53) (322,099.98) (335,285.00) 0.00 100.00 (335,285.00)


General Government Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (350.00) (1,221.00) (300.00)  0.00  100.00 (300.00)


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (266.55) (172.05) (180.00) (206.25) (14.58)  26.25 


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00) (50.00) (100.00)  0.00  100.00 (100.00)


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (160.00) (280.00) (240.00) (170.00)  29.16 (70.00)


1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,788.80) (2,970.46) (2,000.00) (1,495.60)  25.22 (504.40)


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,370.61) (1,893.08) (4,000.00) (1,824.77)  54.38 (2,175.23)


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (3,322.30) (18,354.44) (9,000.00) (11,568.74) (28.54)  2,568.74 


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,153.87) (5,804.40) (3,500.00) (1,459.91)  58.28 (2,040.09)


*        TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (14,462.13) (30,745.43) (19,320.00) (16,725.27) 13.43 (2,594.73)


Operating Grant Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (9,345.03) (1,500.00) (2,500.00)  649.00  125.96 (3,149.00)


1-00-00-00-00-751 GRANTS - ACP INTERMUNICIPAL (17,354.25) (4,414.89) (1,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (1,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,832.00) (34,147.00) (34,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (34,000.00)


*        TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (61,531.28) (40,061.89) (37,500.00) 649.00 101.73 (38,149.00)







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 2 of 10


Protective Services Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF,  Fines, Lease (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (10.00)  95.00 (190.00)


*        TOTAL Protective Services Rev (665.00) (35.00) (200.00) (10.00) 95.00 (190.00)


Transportation Service Revenue


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (400.00) (110.00) (200.00) (40.00)  80.00 (160.00)


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (80.00) (400.00) (100.00) (80.00)  20.00 (20.00)


*        TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (480.00) (510.00) (300.00) (120.00) 60.00 (180.00)


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install  0.00 (5,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00  0.00 


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (240.00) (270.00) (100.00) (120.00) (20.00)  20.00 


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (105,061.11) (123,579.31) (110,200.00) (55,022.73)  50.07 (55,177.27)


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,594.04) (3,578.42) (3,000.00) (1,009.63)  66.34 (1,990.37)


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (411.91) (222.93) (500.00) (127.25)  74.55 (372.75)


*        TOTAL Water Revenue (109,307.06) (132,650.66) (114,800.00) (57,279.61) 50.10 (57,520.39)


Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (6,190.24)  39.31 (4,009.76)


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (9,522.50) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (6,190.24) 39.31 (4,009.76)


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install  0.00 (2,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00  0.00 


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (26,831.66) (22,578.00) (24,000.00) (11,156.00)  53.51 (12,844.00)


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,092.75) (3,126.35) (3,000.00) (173.00)  94.23 (2,827.00)


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (75.00)  98.12 (3,925.00)


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue (33,924.41) (31,704.35) (32,000.00) (12,404.00) 61.24 (19,596.00)







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 3 of 10


Waste Management  Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (13,110.67) (9.25)  1,110.67 


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,015.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (13,110.67) (9.26) 1,110.67


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,260.00) (1,130.00) (600.00) (225.00)  62.50 (375.00)


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (2,040.00) (1,250.00) (500.00) (2,593.55) (418.71)  2,093.55 


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution  0.00  0.00 (1,375.00)  0.00  100.00 (1,375.00)


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (3,300.00) (2,380.00) (2,475.00) (2,818.55) (13.88) 343.55


Recreation & Culture Revenue


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,175.00) (1,988.75) (1,000.00) (350.00)  65.00 (650.00)


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100.00) (399.50) (100.00)  0.00  100.00 (100.00)


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (42,867.91) (45,806.31) (47,600.00)  0.00  100.00 (47,600.00)


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (200.00) (2,950.00) (3,000.00) (181.00)  93.96 (2,819.00)


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue  0.00 (1,400.00) (2,400.00) (1,000.00)  58.33 (1,400.00)


*        TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (44,342.91) (52,544.56) (54,100.00) (1,531.00) 97.17 (52,569.00)


Planning & Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (1,350.00)  415.00 (200.00) (5,185.00) (2,492.50)  4,985.00 


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Operating  0.00  0.00 (3,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (3,000.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Development R (1,350.00) 415.00 (3,200.00) (5,185.00) (62.03) 1,985.00


**       TOTAL Revenue (598,191.82) (636,601.19) (621,380.00) (114,725.34) 81.54 (506,654.66)







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 4 of 10


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums  10,050.00  10,700.00  11,000.00  2,350.00  78.63  8,650.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel  6,897.07  3,826.16  6,000.00  1,253.08  79.11  4,746.92 


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc  3,772.50  2,322.89  3,500.00  397.96  88.62  3,102.04 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 20,719.57 16,849.05 20,500.00 4,001.04 80.48 16,498.96


Administration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin  117,586.80  84,671.54  89,100.00  37,134.95  58.32  51,965.05 


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO  3,838.92  2,895.42  4,000.00  1,362.47  65.93  2,637.53 


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin  4,596.92  6,119.31  6,200.00  2,633.10  57.53  3,566.90 


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin  14,869.79  15,592.87  13,200.00  7,036.10  46.69  6,163.90 


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin  2,063.23  2,551.22  2,500.00  2,157.04  13.71  342.96 


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census  409.03  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN  1,823.11  1,366.96  5,000.00  0.00  100.00  5,000.00 


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin  1,003.01  1,044.19  1,500.00  354.58  76.36  1,145.42 


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin  779.87  891.36  1,000.00  302.10  69.79  697.90 


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin  5,927.09  5,863.37  6,600.00  3,478.52  47.29  3,121.48 


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin  33,559.89  34,959.05  33,300.00  8,085.06  75.72  25,214.94 


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin  2,490.83  2,056.94  2,500.00  445.77  82.16  2,054.23 


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin  200.59  1,510.48  600.00  546.11  8.98  53.89 


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin  17,333.80  13,446.10  13,800.00  18,089.30 (31.08) (4,289.30)


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles  236.00  90.00  200.00  20.00  90.00  180.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin  729.03  505.83  800.00  264.53  66.93  535.47 


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin  7,407.51  7,927.50  8,200.00  3,955.00  51.76  4,245.00 


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin  2,077.73  4,758.90  2,750.00  1,198.85  56.40  1,551.15 


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin  1,250.00  1,250.00  1,300.00  1,250.00  3.84  50.00 


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power  2,530.90  2,685.91  2,750.00  1,116.16  59.41  1,633.84 


2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas  1,280.00  1,413.95  1,500.00  799.91  46.67  700.09 


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin  2,677.87  2,729.48  2,750.00  550.70  79.97  2,199.30 


2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization  219,863.43  178,644.74  224,400.00  0.00  100.00  224,400.00 


*        TOTAL Administration Expenses 444,535.35 372,975.12 423,950.00 90,780.25 78.59 333,169.75







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 5 of 10


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages  497.74  250.00  1,000.00  150.00  85.00  850.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire  0.87  0.00  50.00  0.00  100.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc  2,332.54  361.63  2,000.00  432.02  78.39  1,567.98 


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies  95.41  0.00  50.00  0.00  100.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power  1,644.37  2,092.38  1,950.00  869.45  55.41  1,080.55 


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas  1,906.33  2,404.72  1,900.00  1,510.92  20.47  389.08 


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition  6,506.64  6,104.64  11,300.00  6,125.70  45.79  5,174.30 


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services  836.61  1,150.24  1,200.00  296.25  75.31  903.75 


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services  600.00  600.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


*        TOTAL Protective Services Exp 14,420.51 12,963.61 19,950.00 9,384.34 52.96 10,565.66


Shop Expenses


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool  3,120.67  3,101.60  2,700.00  1,280.61  52.57  1,419.39 


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool  187.30  197.70  200.00  92.11  53.94  107.89 


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool  156.02  1,101.66  200.00  444.77 (122.38) (244.77)


2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages  15,716.39  15,508.12  13,700.00  6,402.94  53.26  7,297.06 


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main  936.58  988.33  900.00  460.63  48.81  439.37 


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits Vlg Maint  780.46  970.94  1,000.00  295.54  70.44  704.46 


2-31-00-00-00-250 Vlg Maint Contracted Services  2,075.00  228.64  2,000.00  0.00  100.00  2,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-510 Vlg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op  1,230.39  993.12  2,000.00  43.32  97.83  1,956.68 


2-31-00-00-00-524 Vlg Maint Equip Supplies  2,040.54  2,298.06  2,000.00  120.33  93.98  1,879.67 


2-31-00-00-00-526 Vlg Maint Equip Supply Tractor  987.73  920.01  800.00  664.62  16.92  135.38 


2-31-00-00-00-527 Vlg Maint Fuel  4,399.34  2,547.96  3,100.00  0.00  100.00  3,100.00 


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear  341.45  151.32  500.00  333.57  33.28  166.43 


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop  778.44  589.30  900.00  302.10  66.43  597.90 


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman  907.97  1,292.00  900.00  392.81  56.35  507.19 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 33,658.28 30,888.76 30,900.00 10,833.35 64.94 20,066.65







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 6 of 10


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads  16,531.47  17,839.28  17,200.00  7,051.90  59.00  10,148.10 


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads  1,017.39  1,041.20  1,100.00  491.01  55.36  608.99 


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads  820.13  970.94  1,200.00  295.54  75.37  904.46 


2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services  7,535.84  1,177.00  2,000.00  1,307.00  34.65  693.00 


2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies  0.00  482.62  1,000.00  0.00  100.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials  844.99  3,001.28  1,000.00  0.00  100.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights  10,559.86  12,329.42  12,000.00  5,210.72  56.57  6,789.28 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 37,309.68 36,841.74 35,500.00 14,356.17 59.56 21,143.83


Irrigation Expenses


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation  7,729.82  8,534.35  6,900.00  3,043.72  55.88  3,856.28 


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint  329.97  973.75  750.00  35.78  95.22  714.22 


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power  3,248.23  2,598.47  3,600.00  432.81  87.97  3,167.19 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 11,308.02 12,106.57 11,750.00 3,512.31 70.11 8,237.69


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water  22,803.75  21,831.84  29,500.00  8,916.24  69.77  20,583.76 


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water  1,730.48  1,763.93  2,600.00  780.45  69.98  1,819.55 


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water  1,092.62  1,846.51  2,300.00  564.98  75.43  1,735.02 


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel  1,823.34  3,553.10  3,000.00  1,326.01  55.79  1,673.99 


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant  1,078.35  1,191.36  1,100.00  302.10  72.53  797.90 


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services  7,983.88  12,015.10  11,000.00  10,186.94  7.39  813.06 


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint  1,968.90  2,451.60  7,600.00  3,577.43  52.92  4,022.57 


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc  22,947.95  31.14  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service  6,196.25  4,464.17  6,500.00  3,985.62  38.68  2,514.38 


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power  10,156.53  12,076.98  10,700.00  4,896.21  54.24  5,803.79 


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas  3,428.59  3,545.23  3,800.00  1,946.69  48.77  1,853.31 


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount  3,489.50  3,655.62  3,500.00  56.00  98.40  3,444.00 


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 84,700.14 68,426.58 83,100.00 36,538.67 56.03 46,561.33







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 7 of 10


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer  3,020.67  3,101.60  2,700.00  1,280.61  52.57  1,419.39 


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer  187.30  197.70  200.00  92.11  53.94  107.89 


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer  156.02  276.80  200.00  94.21  52.89  105.79 


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services  19,819.86  2,481.70  5,250.00  0.00  100.00  5,250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount  0.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 23,183.85 6,057.80 8,850.00 1,466.93 83.42 7,383.07


Waste Management Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  250.00  3,395.50 (1,258.20) (3,145.50)


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services  50.48  0.00  250.00  0.00  100.00  250.00 


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA  6,747.37  7,792.56  7,100.00  4,093.78  42.34  3,006.22 


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station  0.00  3,126.80  3,300.00  4,050.48 (22.74) (750.48)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 6,797.85 10,919.36 10,900.00 11,539.76 (5.87) (639.76)


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery  1,688.45  3,346.52  2,100.00  1,763.17  16.03  336.83 


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services  142.83  200.00  3,250.00  1,187.65  63.45  2,062.35 


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power  947.99  1,006.25  1,100.00  421.33  61.69  678.67 


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  500.00  130.65  73.87  369.35 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 2,779.27 4,552.77 6,950.00 3,502.80 49.60 3,447.20


Planning & Development Expense


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS  1,659.00  1,681.12  1,730.00  5,202.10 (200.69) (3,472.10)


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition  3,288.28  3,863.00  5,200.00  0.00  100.00  5,200.00 


*        TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 4,947.28 5,544.12 7,430.00 5,202.10 29.99 2,227.90







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 8 of 10


Parks & Recreation Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks  3,000.00  3,150.00  3,000.00  0.00  100.00  3,000.00 


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec  4,396.15  5,978.61  2,000.00  3,177.41 (58.87) (1,177.41)


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (Vlg USE ONLY)  1,355.31  1,142.36  6,150.00  0.00  100.00  6,150.00 


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power  951.94  1,064.68  1,000.00  467.08  53.29  532.92 


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas  730.00  855.88  800.00  462.18  42.22  337.82 


*        TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 10,433.40 12,191.53 13,450.00 4,106.67 69.47 9,343.33


Library Expenses


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services  968.38  886.57  1,000.00  1,155.90 (15.59) (155.90)


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services  0.00  10.45  500.00  75.13  84.97  424.87 


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support  18,000.00  15,000.00  15,300.00  15,000.00  1.96  300.00 


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library  2,480.60  2,531.16  2,500.00  1,290.86  48.36  1,209.14 


*        TOTAL Library Expenses 21,448.98 18,428.18 19,300.00 17,521.89 9.21 1,778.11


Community Hall Expenses


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall  2,900.00  1,275.00  2,700.00  350.00  87.03  2,350.00 


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service  488.95  315.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service  954.03  1,601.89  1,000.00  1,321.01 (32.10) (321.01)


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power  1,920.75  2,108.79  1,500.00  1,074.57  28.36  425.43 


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas  1,240.96  1,456.03  1,125.00  749.66  33.36  375.34 


*        TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 7,504.69 6,756.71 6,825.00 3,495.24 48.79 3,329.76


Pioneer Parlour Expenses


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour  18,973.75  22,604.66  18,500.00  0.00  100.00  18,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP  694.03  1,014.14  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services  75.94  1,432.00  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg)  939.03  2,786.58  1,000.00  100.00  90.00  900.00 


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services  17,203.67  21,312.83  19,900.00  0.00  100.00  19,900.00 


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power  1,598.36  1,702.28  1,700.00  466.18  72.57  1,233.82 


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas  834.76  1,019.48  1,100.00  586.44  46.68  513.56 


*        TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 40,319.54 51,871.97 44,200.00 1,152.62 97.39 43,047.38







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 9 of 10


Post Office Expenses


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas  0.00  0.00  375.00  0.00  100.00  375.00 


*        TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 100.00 875.00


Community Support Requisitions


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing  0.00  0.00  5,585.00  0.00  100.00  5,585.00 


2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Communities in Bloom  2,925.00  1,788.75  2,000.00  0.00  100.00  2,000.00 


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate  1,500.00  1,428.57  1,500.00  1,500.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req  500.00  500.00  500.00  0.00  100.00  500.00 


2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  0.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation  0.00  300.00  300.00  0.00  100.00  300.00 


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vlg DON'T USE )  2,818.85  801.01  1,500.00  0.00  100.00  1,500.00 


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation  5,520.09  5,870.52  6,000.00  5,828.54  2.85  171.46 


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist  4,203.18  4,553.30  4,400.00  0.00  100.00  4,400.00 


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation  68,249.59  71,341.78  73,100.00  17,835.44  75.60  55,264.56 


2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 


(DIP)


 20.37  47.17  47.00  0.00  100.00  47.00 


2-12-00-00-00-763 General Reserves transfer from Operating  0.00  0.00  3,972.00  0.00  100.00  3,972.00 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 88,183.08 89,077.10 101,350.00 27,609.98 72.76 73,740.02


**       TOTAL Expenses 852,249.49 756,450.97 845,780.00 245,004.12 71.03 600,775.88


***      TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 254,057.67 119,849.78 224,400.00 130,278.78 41.94 94,121.22







 3:02:16PM


2020-Jun-9


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining %


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 10 of 10


Capital Grants Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (88,225.34) (91,802.29) (211,850.00)  0.00  100.00 (211,850.00)


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC (90,569.74)  0.00 (130,000.00)  0.00  100.00 (130,000.00)


*        TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (341,850.00)


**       TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (178,795.08) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 100.00 (341,850.00)


Capital Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  10,750.00  10,454.20  2.75  295.80 


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  4,000.00  0.00  100.00  4,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  181,400.00  2,600.00  98.56  178,800.00 


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  3,500.95  29.98  1,499.05 


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  123,700.00  0.00  100.00  123,700.00 


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  12,000.00  0.00  100.00  12,000.00 


2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Hall - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  5,000.00  0.00  100.00  5,000.00 


*        TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 16,555.15 95.16 325,294.85


**       TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00 341,850.00 16,555.15 95.16 325,294.85


***      Revenues Over Expense/Capital (178,795.08) (91,802.29) 0.00 16,555.15 0.00 (16,555.15)


*** End of Report ***





































































 


Municipal Assessment & Grants Division 
Assessment Services Branch 
15A, 10155 102 Street 


Edmonton, Alberta  T5J 4L4 


www.alberta.ca 


May 22, 2020 
 
Ms. Marilee Campbell, CAO 
Village of Glenwood 
Email:  marilee.campbell@glenwood.ca 
 
Dear Ms. Campbell: 
 
This letter is formal notification that the Assessment Services Branch, Alberta Municipal 
Affairs, will be performing a detailed assessment audit for the Village of Glenwood. 
 
Assessment audits are preformed under the authority of section 22 of the Matters Relating 
to Assessment and Taxation Regulation, 2018.  The objective of the detailed assessment 
audit is to provide an unbiased opinion as to the quality of the 2019 assessment roll (2020 
tax year).  The opinion will be based upon a review of practices and procedures used by the 
village and assessor in administration of the assessment program in relation to applicable 
legislation, best practice references, and audit procedures outlined in the provincial Detailed 
Assessment Audit Manual.  As a benefit to the municipality, the audit will identify where 
opportunities exist to improve assessment performance and quality of the assessments. 
 
The auditor will contact you and your assessor soon to discuss the audit process and to 
make arrangements for conducting the audit.  Your assessor will be the primary contact with 
the auditor and should be able to provide any required information.  Because of provincial 
protocols concerning the COVID-19 virus, we anticipate making all contact by phone or 
email.  In the event a hard-copy exchange of information is necessary, we will make special 
arrangements. 
 
It would be appreciated if you would inform your council a detailed assessment audit has 
been scheduled for your municipality. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact your Assessment Auditor Corinne Keough at 
403 297-5723. 
 
Yours truly, 


 
Darren Rossiter 
Director, Assessment Audit 
 
cc: Morgan Strate 
 morgan@benchmarkassessment.ca 
 



http://www.alberta.ca/

mailto:marilee.campbell@glenwood.ca

mailto:morgan@benchmarkassessment.ca






 


Additional information is available at alberta.ca/emergency-management-legislation.aspx 
©2020 Government of Alberta  |  Published: May 2020  


Bill 13: Emergency Management Act Amendments 


Frequently asked questions 
 


What do the 
broadened 


enforcement 
provisions mean for 
my community and 


emergency 
operations? 


 Previously under the Emergency Management Act, the enforcement provision 
only applied if an individual did not comply with an evacuation order. To ensure 
you have the tools to address emergencies and disasters, the enforcement 
provision has been expanded to include non-compliance of orders related to 
requiring qualified persons to render aid, controlling or prohibiting travel in 
Alberta, restoration of facilities and distribution of essential supplies, price fixing, 
and conscription. 


Why was the 
duration of a regular 


state of local 
emergency (SOLE) 


not extended? 


 Non-pandemic disasters and emergencies are typically dynamic and shorter in 
duration, therefore non-pandemic SOLEs will continue to last up to seven days 
before requiring renewal. This ensures council or the emergency advisory 
committee meet regularly to confirm that access to the extraordinary powers 
under a SOLE is still required. 


Will my community 
have to make a new 


declaration for a 
pandemic state of 


emergency that will 
last for 90 days? 


 If your SOLE declaration was specific to a pandemic, a new declaration is not 
required. You will be required to determine the duration of the SOLE, which can 
be extended up to 90 days. 


If the SOLE declaration was not specific to a pandemic, a new declaration would 
be required to access the 90-day duration. You may renew your SOLE 
declaration after Bill 13 comes into force, and that date would mark the beginning 
of the 90-day duration for the pandemic SOLE. 


If my community is 
faced with another 
emergency or 
disaster while the 
pandemic SOLE is 
in place, and a 
need for 
extraordinary legal 
authorities exists, 
do we need to 
declare another 
SOLE? 


 Yes. Under section 21(2) of the Emergency Management Act the SOLE must 
identify the nature of the emergency and the area of the municipality in which it 
exists. 







 


Additional information is available at alberta.ca/emergency-management-legislation.aspx 
©2020 Government of Alberta  |  Published: May 2020  


Why was the 
reference to 


“pandemic 
influenza” changed 


to “pandemic” in 
section 18, which 


relates to a 
provincial 


declaration of a 
state of 


emergency? 


 Given that COVID-19 is not a type of influenza, the previous wording limited the 
ability to declare a provincial state of emergency with a 90-day duration. Without 
this amendment, a provincially declared state of emergency would only last 28 
days before requiring renewal. This more inclusive wording will ensure the 
province has the authority and tools needed to respond to any type of pandemic. 


Why did the 
Government of 


Alberta include the 
new provisions in 


sections 24 (1.01) 
and (1.02) that 


would allow the 
Minister to restrict, 


prohibit, or 
terminate a local 


authority’s use of s 
19(1) powers? 


 This amendment allows the Minister to selectively restrict or alter the use of the 
extraordinary powers provided under a SOLE, without having to cancel it. During 
a larger, province-wide response, this allows the Minister to maintain consistency 
across multiple municipalities in the use of section 19(1) authorities. Additionally, 
with a pandemic SOLE now lasting for up to 90 days, this is another check and 
balance provided to the Minister to ensure that the broader public interest is 
preserved. 


What does the new 
section 19(1.1) 


allow the Minister to 
do? 


 The Minister already has broad authorities under section 19(1), that are not 
explicitly listed, and this allows the Minister to make an order that is enforceable 
as an offence for any powers that are not explicitly listed. This new provision 
does not extend to local authorities. 


What is the process 
that can be used if 


a local authority 
wants to proceed 


with an offence 
under the 


Emergency 
Management Act? 


 If a peace officer or police officer has reasonable and probable grounds to 
believe that a contravention of the Emergency Management Act has occurred, 
and that it is in the public interest to proceed with charging an individual with an 
offence, they can issue a Summons Violation Ticket in accordance with Part 2 of 
the Provincial Offences Procedure Act to the individual that is suspected of not 
being in compliance with an order under a SOLE or SOE. The individual who 
wishes to plead guilty can then either pay the legislated fine on or before the 
appearance date in the summons. Otherwise, the person, or their agent, is 
required to appear in court on the appearance date to enter a plea and set a date 
for trial. 


For non-compliance of orders issued under the Public Health Act Community 
Peace Officers Level 1, Alberta Peace Officers Levels 1 and 2, and Police can 
enforce the Chief Medical Officer of Health orders. The Procedures Regulation 
(AR 63/2017) was amended to allow for a violation ticket to be issued under Part 







 


Additional information is available at alberta.ca/emergency-management-legislation.aspx 
©2020 Government of Alberta  |  Published: May 2020  


3 of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, for a contravention of an order of a 
medical officer of health. The specified penalty is $1,000. This specified penalty 
is only for enforcement under the Public Health Act. 


What happens to a 
community’s SOLE 


if a SOE is 
declared? 


 The SOLE remains in place. If there is a provincially declared SOE a community 
is expected to continue to address and respond to emergencies and disasters at 
a local level, unless otherwise directed or requested by the Government of 
Alberta. 


 








MINUTES OF THE CHIEF MOUNTAIN REGIONAL SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY MEETING HELD MAY 13, 
2020 VIA ZOOM. 


Authority Members Present: 
 
Richard Van Ee – Town of Magrath  Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston 
Philip Wright –  Town of Milk River  Robert Edwards – Village of Stirling  
Randy Taylor – County of Warner  Lawrence Mistaken Chief – Blood Tribe 
Tyler Lindsay – Village of Warner  David Rolfson – Village of Glenwood 
Bryce Coppieters – Town of Raymond  Tanya Smith – Village of Coutts  
    
Others Present: 
 
Abe Tinney - SEO  Lee Beazer – Operator  Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer 
Chandra Deaust - Avail 
        
Commenced at 4:35 pm   


Randy Taylor in the Chair. 


AGENDA 


Richard Van Ee moved that the agenda be adopted as presented.     Carried 


MINUTES      


Gerry Selk moved that the minutes of the February 12, 2020 board meeting be adopted as presented. 
 Carried    


 
DELEGATION 


Chandra Deaust, from Avail, went over the reviewed financial books for the 2019 year.  Avail found the 
books to be in order.   
 
Chandra Deaust excused at 5:01 p.m. 
 
20-05 Robert Edwards moved to accept the reviewed 2019 Financial Statement as performed by Avail.  
             Carried 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
The SEO advised that the Safety Committee met in February and reviewed the safety policies.  The 
policies have been compiled into a safety manual, with minor changes being made to some policies.  The 
Safety Committee recommends that the Authority seek quotes from a consultant to develop a safety 
program/manual.   
 







MINUTES CMRSWA MEETING MAY 13, 2020 
 


2 
Printed: 2020-05-25 


20-06 Philip Wright moved to seek quotes from a consultant to develop a safety program/manual. 
             Carried 
 
The SEO reported that in March, Alberta Recycling held a waste to energy symposium.  A link was 
presented for those board members who wish to review the information.  The Authority would have 
some significant challenges to implement many of these technologies. 
 
The SEO advised that the Commission has been established via a regulation.  Prior to conducting any 
business as a commission, the two Bylaws 001-20 and Bylaw 002-20 must be passed.  The SEO 
recommends passing with an amendment to the Bylaw excluding the Blood Tribe as part of the 
Commission.  The Blood Tribe to-date has not approved either of the Bylaw’s for becoming a 
Commission. 
 
David Rolfson moved to approve the SEO’s report.       Carried 
 
The SEO will forward Lawrence Mistaken Chief the information regarding the Commission.  The board 
would like to have the Bylaw 001-20 amended by removing 2.11. 
 
20-07 Tanya Smith moved that amended Bylaw 001-20: Board of Directors, be given first reading. 
             Carried 
20-08 Gerry Selk moved that amended Bylaw 001-20: Board of Directors, be given second reading. 
             Carried 
20-09 Philip Wright moved to proceed with third reading.      Carried 
20-10 Robert Edwards moved that amended Bylaw 001-20: Board of Directors, be given third and final 


reading.           Carried 
 
20-11 Bryce Coppieters moved that Bylaw 002-20: Fees and Governance, be given first reading. Carried 
20-12 Richard Van Ee moved that Bylaw 002-20: Fees and Governance, be given second reading. 
             Carried 
20-13 Tyler Lindsay moved to proceed with third reading.      Carried 
20-14 Tanya Smith moved that Bylaw 002-20: Fees and Governance, be given third and final reading. 
             Carried 
 
 
The Operator reported that 877.655 tonnes of waste were delivered to the Landfill in February 2020; 
901.240 for March 2020; and 1039.395 for April 2020; with no waste being diverted. 
 
The Operator advised that on April 22, 2020 a trailer was lost due to hot ashes being dumped at a 
transfer station.  The board would like a letter sent to all municipalities to remind them that no ashes 
can be dumped at their transfer stations.  The board suggested a new policy be formed including a fee 
for a return trip if ashes are found and the waste will not be hauled from the transfer station for a 24-
hour period.  The SEO and Operator will work on developing a policy together and have the policy 
committee review the new policy prior to the next board meeting. 
 
The Operator reported that gravel was purchased from a pit near Magrath.  Gravel was not a budgeted 
item but there should be cost savings in the budget under fuel to make-up the difference.  The board 
would like notification prior to non-budgeted items being purchased.  The Operator advised the board 
that he spoke with the SEO regarding the matter prior to purchasing the gravel. 







MINUTES CMRSWA MEETING MAY 13, 2020 
 


3 
Printed: 2020-05-25 


 
The Operator advised that the Blood Tribe have approached about some different options for continuing 
the Authorities service with their new transfer station.  The board would like the SEO to meet with the 
Blood Tribe Council and Joe Healy regarding the Commission and the trucking options. 
 
The Operator would like to have the boards permission to start looking at purchasing a new trailer.  The 
board would like the Operator to get price quotes for a new trailer. 
 
Gerry Selk moved to approve the Operator’s report.       Carried  


Robert Edwards advised that he has spoken with Western Trade Winds and COVID-19 has changed the 
price for the truck due to the USA exchange rate.  Robert feels it is not feasible to look at purchasing 
through them currently. 


Financial Statement 


The Financial Statements for February 29, 2020; March 31, 2020; and April 30, 2020 were reviewed.    


David Rolfson moved to accept the February 29, 2020; March 31, 2020; and April 30, 2020 Financial 
Statements.              Carried 


Approval of Bills  


Bills for the months of February, March, and April 2020 were reviewed.  


Robert Edwards moved to approve the bills for February, March, and April 2020.    Carried 


CORRESPONDENCE 


A letter from Wilde Brothers Engineering LTD regarding the 2019 Annual Report.        Filed 


A letter from Wilde Brothers Engineering LTD regarding the Closure and Post Closure.       Filed 


A letter from RMA Insurance regarding insurance program updates.         Filed 


Tanya Smith moved to approve correspondence.       Carried 


ADJOURNMENT 


Philip Wright moved meeting adjourned. 


Adjournment at 6:14 p.m.  


Next Authority meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 10, 2020 at 4:30 p.m. location to be 
announced. 


 
__________________________________   
Chairman 








 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 29, 2020 | Page 1 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Outbreak 
Frequently Asked Questions – May 29, 2020  
 


While we continue down the road to recovery 


together, Alberta Municipal Affairs remains 


committed to issuing bi-weekly updates that address 


frequently asked questions as well as provide 


information on new tools and resources as they 


become available. 


 


If you would like a specific question answered in an 


upcoming update, please email your request to 


ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.    


 


 


Electronic Meetings 
 


Does the electronic meeting 


provisions in the Meeting Procedures 


(COVID-19 Suppression) Regulation enable all of 


council to meet in person and have the public 


only attend through an electronic means? 


 


YES. However, to meet the terms of the regulation 


and be consistent with the May 26, 2020 letter from 


the Chief Medical Officer of Health, the CAO or a 


designated officer must also attend electronically. If 


council and the CAO or designated officer attend in 


person, the meeting is not considered an electronic 


meeting.  


Municipal Affairs is currently reviewing whether 


adjustments to the regulation may be required going 


forward. 


 


The Meeting Procedures (COVID-19 Suppression) 


Regulation was put in place in response to the 


COVID-19 public health emergency to ensure 


meetings could occur in a manner that complied with 


the social distancing orders. Section 3 of the 


regulation allows meetings to be held electronically 


under specific conditions. Given the MGA already 


provides for council members to attend 


electronically, under the regulation it is the 


attendance of the CAO or a designated officer that 


determines if the meeting is an electronic meeting.  


 


When the CAO or a designated officer attends 


electronically, public participation can be restricted 


to electronic means only. If the CAO/designated 


officers and council attend in person, the meeting 


does not meet the requirements stated in the 


regulation for an electronic meeting, so members of 


the public must be allowed to attend in person. 


Public attendance would need to comply with the 


social distancing orders with respect to the 


maximum number in the room and the distancing 


requirements. Electronic transmission of the meeting 


could be offered as an additional option for the 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available at 


www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-


resources.aspx 


Municipal Advisory Services 
If you have further questions, please call:    


780-427-2225 or toll-free by first dialing  


310-0000 or email ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 



mailto:ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx





 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 29, 2020 | Page 2 


members of the public or meeting participants that 


exceed the maximum permitted in the meeting room. 


Will the electronic meeting provisions contained 


in the Meeting Procedures (COVID-19 


Suppression) Regulation be permanent? 


 


NO. The purpose of the regulation is to enable 


meetings to occur in a manner that avoids exposing 


people to COVID-19. While we recognize that the 


regulation provides alternatives more reflective of 


current technology, the regulation was not intended 


to enable councils to meet in the absence of the 


public beyond the duration of the pandemic. As part 


of the red tape reduction initiative and review of the 


MGA, consideration may be given to electronic 


meeting provisions to enable greater flexibility for 


municipalities, while also maintaining the public’s 


right to participate. 


 


For now, with the provincial relaunch strategy 


underway, municipalities should be considering 


ways to transition back to regular procedures, as 


public health measures are gradually relaxed. Once 


the pandemic is no longer in effect, municipal 


meetings will be required to enable in-person public 


attendance. Electronic transmission of meetings 


could continue to be offered as an option, but would 


not replace public attendance requirements. 


 


Emergency Management 
 


If a municipality had a pandemic SOLE in effect 


when Bill 13: Emergency Management Act 


Amendments came into force, is a new 


declaration for a pandemic state of emergency 


required to put in effect the 90 day timeframe? 


 


NO. If a municipality’s SOLE declaration states it is 


specific to a pandemic and it was in effect when  


Bill 13 was enacted (May 12, 2020), a new 


declaration is not required; however, the municipality 


is required to determine/state the duration of the 


SOLE, which can be extended up to 90 days. If the 


SOLE declaration did not specifically state it was a 


pandemic SOLE, a new declaration is required and 


must state it is specific to a pandemic to enable the 


90-day duration.  


If desired, you may renew your SOLE declaration 


after Bill 13 came into force, and that renewal date 


would mark the beginning of the 90-day duration for 


the pandemic SOLE. It is up to each municipality to 


decide whether or not to let the pandemic SOLE 


continue or make a new pandemic SOLE 


declaration. 


 


Policing Costs 
 


Will the province consider the cancellation of 


invoices for policing costs announced as part of 


Budget 2019 in recognition of the current 


reduced fiscal capacity of municipalities as they 


manage their local response to the COVID-19 


pandemic? 


 


NO. While the province has announced a number of 


supports for municipalities and continues to work 


with local leaders to monitor concerns and respond 


accordingly, the elimination of the policing invoice is 


not under consideration at this time. 


 


Also note that invoices for policing costs are not 


legislatively designated as a requisition, unlike 


Education Taxes,  Senior’s Foundations and 


Designated Industrial Property Assessment. Given 


policing costs are not designated as a requisition, 


there is no authority for municipalities to show 


policing costs as a separate line item on the 


municipal property tax bylaw, or to levy a specific tax 


rate for the collection of revenue to support policing 


costs. As an invoice to the municipality, policing 


costs must be included in the municipal budget and 


funded out of the revenue collected from the general 


municipal tax rate.  


 


For municipalities wishing to provide information to 


ratepayers on the impact of increased costs for 


policing on the municipal budget, it is recommended 


that an insert be included with tax notices that 


provides that information, along with any other 


information council would like to communicate to 


ratepayers, be it budget related or otherwise. 







 


Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 29, 2020 | Page 3 


 


General Questions  


As part of Premier Jason Kenney’s 


announcement on April 30, 2020 about the 


phased reopening of businesses and services, 


he indicated that a supply of non-medical masks 


would be available to Albertans for use in 


situations where physical distancing is not 


possible. Are these masks going to be available 


soon? 


 


YES. Planning is underway to make 40 million non-


medical masks available to Albertans as part of the 


relaunch. Distribution facilities will be identified in 


many municipalities to increase access for 


Albertans. Additional information will be made 


available as further details are announced.  


 


Mask use is not mandatory; however, Albertans are 


encouraged to wear non-medical masks in public 


spaces (e.g., transit, grocery stores, etc.) as a way 


to prevent respiratory droplets from contaminating 


other people or surfaces. Masks are not a 


replacement for other public health measures and 


good hygiene practices such as hand washing and 


maintaining two-metre physical distancing as much 


as possible continue to be encouraged for all 


Albertans. Rules and guidance for the use of masks 


in crowded spaces, like mass transit, are available 


on Alberta.ca/masks.  


 


Does publishing documents online meet the 


legislative requirements to make public 


documents available when offices remain closed 


to the public?  


 


YES. Where the MGA requires information to be 


available to the public for public inspection, the 


Meeting Procedures (COVID-19 Suppression) 


Regulation enables this to be met by making it 


electronically available on a municipal website. 
 


 


 


 


 


Are there guidelines available to assist with 


reopening municipal playgrounds? 


 


YES. As of May 22, 2020, municipalities may 


choose to reopen their playgrounds if they are 


comfortable that the Chief Medical Officer of Health’s 


guidelines on numbers and physical distancing can 


be met. The reopening of municipal playgrounds 


requires careful planning on the part of 


municipalities. Municipalites can put up signage 


indicating that users are at their own risk and that 


the municipality does not accept any liability. You 


should consult with your legal counsel if you need 


information about liability. To support municipalities 


in adapting current practices, the Government of 


Alberta has released guidance on outdoor activities, 


including playgrounds. This guidance is available at  


https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-


relaunch-guidance-playgrounds.pdf. Please note, 


using playgrounds does have some risks, and 


children may find it difficult to avoid touching their 


eyes, nose, and mouth. Under the direction of the 


Chief Medical Officer of Health, the Government of 


Alberta is also advising Albertans to wear facemasks 


as an extra measure to prevent the spread of 


COVID-19 in the community. 


 


Additional Resources 
 


Alberta municipal associations continue to provide 


comprehensive resources to assist members during 


the pandemic. The Alberta Urban Municipalities 


Association has developed a webpage to act as a 


quick first reference with links to credible sources for 


up-to-date information at https://auma.ca/business-


services/employee-benefits/employers/covid-19.  


The Rural Municipalities of Alberta’s COVID-19 


response hub is accessible via 


https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/.   


 


The Federation of Canadian Municipalities continues 


to compile a list of links and resources for 


municipalities. https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-


resources-municipalities. 



http://www.alberta.ca/masks

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-playgrounds.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-relaunch-guidance-playgrounds.pdf

https://auma.ca/business-services/employee-benefits/employers/covid-19

https://auma.ca/business-services/employee-benefits/employers/covid-19

https://rmalberta.com/about/covid-19-response-hub/

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities

https://fcm.ca/en/resources/covid-19-resources-municipalities











 


 
Village of Hill Spring 
PO Box 40, 11 East 2nd Avenue South 
Hill Spring, AB    T0K 1E0 


403-626-3876 (T) 
403-626-2333 (F) 


office@hillspring.ca 


 
Page 1  


 


 


 


May 29, 2020 


 


Glenwood Village Council 


P.O. Box 1084 


Glenwood, AB Y0K 2R0 


 


 


RE: Water Commission 


  


 


Dear Mayor and council, 


 


The Village of Hill Spring and Cardston County invite you to attend an information and brain 


storming meeting to discuss the ins and outs, pros and cons of a water commission. This is by no 


means an indication of forming a commission, but rather to educate ourselves about a water 


commission - pros and cons etc. so that educated decisions can be made. 


The entire council is invited to attend; if all cannot attend, we ask for some representation. It 


would be advantageous for your administrator and water operator to attend as well. 


We are considering the dates of June 17 or 18th, 5:30 at the Cardston County Building. Please 


discuss these dates with your council and get back to me as to which date is most suitable.  


If you have questions that you would like definite answers to you may bring those questions with 


you or submit them to me or Murray Millward in advance. 


If you have any questions or concerns please do not hesitate to contact me during regular 


business hours.  


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


Janet Edwards 
Village Manager,  


Director of Emergency Management 


Village of Hill Spring 


PO Box 40, 11 East 2nd Avenue South, Hill Spring, AB T0K 1E0 


Office 403.626.3876 | Fax 403.626.2333 


office@hillspring.ca 


 
 



mailto:cao@hillspring.ca






 


 


 


 


  ALBERTA 


MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS 


Office of the Minister 
MLA, Edmonton-South West 


132 Legislature Building, 10800 - 97 Avenue, Edmonton, Alberta  T5K 2B6 Canada  Telephone 780-427-3744  Fax 780-422-9550  


 


 Printed on recycled paper 


 


 
 


Village of Glenwood_2020 GTF 


AR100068 


 
June 10, 2020 
 
His Worship Albert (Jonas) Elias 
Mayor 
Village of Glenwood 
PO Box 1084 
Glenwood AB  T0K 2R0  
 
Dear Mayor Elias,  
 
In these extraordinarily difficult times, Alberta remains committed to working with the federal 
government to ensure infrastructure funding continues to flow to Alberta communities. 
Recognizing the urgency for local government funding and the critical role of communities in 
the relaunch of the economy, the federal government has recently confirmed that $244 
million will be provided to our province in 2020 under the Gas Tax Fund (GTF). 
 
The 2020 GTF allocation for the Village of Glenwood is $50,000. 
 
GTF funding amounts for all municipalities and Metis Settlements are also posted on the 
Government of Alberta website at open.alberta.ca/publications/gas-tax-fund-allocations. 
 
Please note that payment of 2020 GTF allocations to municipalities and Metis Settlements 
is subject to the same conditions as in prior years, including submission of year-end 
reporting and sufficient project commitment requirements.  
 
I look forward to continuing to work together with you and the federal government to help 
your community safely restart and stabilize your economy.   
 
Yours very truly, 
 
 
 
 
Kaycee Madu, QC 
Minister 
 
cc: Marilee Campbell, Chief Administrative Officer, Village of Glenwood 



https://open.alberta.ca/publications/gas-tax-fund-allocations



